2011

Midland Funding LLC v. Kenneth Pipkin : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. Did the District Court err in its decision without considering Plaintiff/Appellee had violated Defendant/Appellant's Rights and requests for verification of alleged debt Pursuant to FDCPA? *See page. 5, Answer to Complaint.* "Defendant requested information listed on 1st Request for ORIGINAL Documentation and ORIGINAL contracts from Plaintiff on Date of June 18, 2010 (Copy attached as Exhibit "A")". *See page. 37, Memorandum in Support of Motion in Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment.* "...Pursuant to the Fair Debt Collections Practices Act (FDCPA), there has been no documented evidence of alleged debt provided to Defendant by Plaintiff or any affiliated parties, alleged debt is null and void. Defendant has no access to information regarding alleged debt". *See Exhibits "A" through "E".*
2. Did the District Court err in its decision after Plaintiff/Appellee had neglected to cease collection activity after Defendant/Appellant had requested name and address of original creditor Pursuant to FDCPA? *See page 50, Motion to Dismiss* "Defendant has repeatedly requested Evidence of alleged debt Pursuant to Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), which gives Defendant certain Rights under FDCPA. *See page 65, Motion for Reconsideration.* "Defendant states that, to date as of this Motion, Plaintiff has disregarded Defendant's requests to produce to Defendant: (1) Documented evidence of alleged debt, (2) name and

address of original creditor and (3) name and address of current creditor(s).

Although Plaintiff neglected to produce any of requested evidence and address information, Plaintiff failed to cease collection of alleged debt. Defendant's first request was timely mailed to Plaintiff as required in FDCPA requirements". *See page 113, Motion for Expedited Post-Judgment Hearing.* "Defendant also requests the Court to consider Plaintiff's disregard of Defendant's Rights Pursuant to FDCPA as Defendant mailed, via Certified Mail, a request for original contract and name and address of original creditor, as well as name and address of current creditor". *See Exhibits "A" through "E".*

3. Did the District Court err in holding that, Pursuant to Rule 56(c), Plaintiff/Appellee had succeeded in "show[ing] that there was no genuine issue as to any material fact" after Defendant/Appellant raised questions regarding Plaintiff/Appellee's allegations of "Breach of Contract", without Plaintiff/Appellee presenting alleged contract to support said claim? *See page 37, Memorandum in Support of Motion in Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment.* "Defendant does not dispute validity of age, competency or employment of Affiant. Affiant's affidavit does not provide documented evidence of alleged debt therefore is irrelevant". *See pages 52 and 53, Reply to Plaintiff's Opposition to Motion to Dismiss.* "Regarding Plaintiff's alleged "Breach of contract claim", (1) no contract has been provided to Defendant, or the Court (to Defendant's knowledge) as evidence of alleged debt, (2) Plaintiff has repeatedly disregarded

Defendant's requests for evidence of alleged debt, showing poor performance by the party (Plaintiff) seeking alleged recovery, (3) no evidence of alleged debt, namely "an original contract", has been provided to Defendant to support Plaintiff's alleged "breach of contract by (any) party", and (4) there has been no evidence of alleged debt presented to support alleged "damages"..... Therefore, as "not remembering" alleged debt is not evidence that alleged debt does not exist, Plaintiff alleging that alleged debt exists, without providing or presenting evidence of alleged debt, also is not evidence that alleged debt exists."

4. Did the District Court err in holding that Plaintiff/Appellee had produced sufficient evidence attached to Affidavit Pursuant to Rule 56(e) to establish a prima facie case? *See page 24, Affidavit of Myeah Struck*. "I have access to and have reviewed the records pertaining to...". *See Exhibit "4" of Plaintiff/Appellee's Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment, Pages 18 through 24. See page 126, Reply in Support of Motion for Expedited Post-Judgment Hearing*. "Defendant submits the same argument because Plaintiff has failed and continues to fail to present original contract which Plaintiff accuses Defendant of Breaching. In order for there to be a breach of contract, there must be a contract in existence, which Plaintiff has failed to present to create a prima facie case."

Although Defendant/Appellant preserved the above issues in the Trial Court, Defendant/Appellant feels that the above issues were ignored and unpreserved by the Plaintiff/Appellee and/or the Judge. Therefore, Defendant/Appellant requests the Court of Appeals to review the above non-preserved issues.

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS

None.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a simple case where Plaintiff/Appellee has failed to form a Prima Facie case and has violated Defendant/Appellant's Rights Pursuant to FDCPA.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On or around May 30, 2010, Defendant/Appellant received letter from Plaintiff/Appellee's Attorney, Johnson Mark, Attorneys at Law (hereafter "Attorney"). Letter, attached as Exhibit "E", was dated May 27, 2010 and states, in part, "....Federal law gives you thirty days after you receive this letter to dispute the validity of the debt or any part of it.....If you do dispute it by notifying our firm in

writing to that effect, we will, as required by law, obtain and mail you proof of the debt. And if, within the same period, you request in writing the name and address of your original creditor, if the original creditor is different from the current creditor, we will furnish you with that information too.....If, however you request proof of the debt or the name and address of the original creditor within the thirty-day period that begins with your receipt of this letter, the law requires our firm to suspend our efforts to collect the debt (through a lawsuit, arbitration, or otherwise) until we mail the requested information to you.”

On June 18, 2010 Defendant/Appellant mailed, via certified mail to Plaintiff/Appellee’s Attorney, a letter (submitted as Exhibit “A” in District Court) requesting proof of alleged debt, along with name and address of original creditor. No response was received by Defendant/Appellant until, on March 7, 2011, nearly a year later, a Complaint and summons was served on Defendant/Appellant’s father, while Defendant/Appellant was in Texas visiting family. Defendant/Appellant filed Answer to Complaint on March 28, 2011.

On May 10, 2011, Defendant/Appellant received a letter from Plaintiff/Appellee’s Attorney requesting a Pre-Trial Conference. Certificate of Mailing on letter was typed “On April 21, 2011, I mailed.....” and the 21 was crossed off with pen and “26” was hand-written above the typed “21”. Postmark on the envelope containing the letter was 05/05/11. Subsequently, Defendant/Appellant received a

letter from the District Court, postmarked 05/11/11, on May 13, 2011. This “Notice of Pre-Trial Conference” was addressed, incorrectly, to Defendant/Appellant’s physical address: 675 N Lavritzen St #3, Hildale, UT 84784. Correct physical address is: 675 N Lauritzen St., Hildale UT 84784. U. S. Post Office usually delivers to: P. O. Box 842272, Hildale UT 84784, yet Defendant/Appellant did, in fact, receive the “Notice of Pre-Trial Conference” letter from the District Court.

On June 9, 2011, at the Pre-Trial Conference, Defendant/Appellant notified the District Court Judge that no response to Defendant/Appellant’s letter had been received. A representative for Plaintiff/Appellee’s attorney stated that “requested information had been sent but was rejected by U. S. Post Office and returned”.

The following day, on June 10, 2011, Defendant/Appellant mailed, via certified mail to Plaintiff/Appellee’s attorney, a “2nd Request and Demand.....” (submitted as Exhibit “B” in District Court) which requested the information a second time, along with a “copy of allegedly rejected Postmarked envelope that allegedly contained original evidence previously requested on June 18, 2010”. Subject line of Defendant/Appellant’s letter also notified Plaintiff/Appellee’s attorney that “This Demand is Pursuant to the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act”.

On or around July 7, 2011, Defendant/Appellant received Motion for Summary Judgment, Affidavit of Mycah Struck, Memorandum, Declaration of costs,

and Exhibit "A", general provisions of [non-specific] cardholder agreement from Plaintiff/Appellee's attorney. Defendant/Appellant filed Motion in Opposition to Summary Judgment, along with Memorandum and Exhibits "A" through "D".

On or around July 21, 2011, Defendant/Appellant received Reply in Support of Summary Judgment, Request to Submit for Decision, and unsigned Summary Judgment. On July 21, 2011, Defendant/Appellant filed a Reply in Opposition for Motion for Summary Judgment, Motion to Dismiss, and Order to Dismiss.

On August 2, 2011, the District Judge, signed Plaintiff/Appellee's Summary Judgment. Defendant/Appellant filed additional motions, including: Motion for Reconsideration, Motion for Expedited Post-Judgment Hearing, and Notice of Appeal, among others.

ARGUMENT

1. THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN ITS DECISION WITHOUT CONSIDERING PLAINTIFF/APPELLEE HAD VIOLATED DEFENDANT/APPELLANT'S RIGHTS AND REQUESTS FOR VERIFICATION OF ALLEGED DEBT PURSUANT TO FDCPA.

FDCPA was created to protect consumers from unfair debt collection practices of debt collectors, including attorneys. See HEINTZ et al. v. JENKINS, 514 U.S. 291 (1995). In this case, Plaintiff/Appellee has violated FDCPA after Defendant/Appellant requested verification of alleged debt. See Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692-1692p. § 809. Validation of debts (a)(4), and (b). See attached Exhibits "A" through "D". Defendant/Appellant has also verbally requested verification. Verification was requested by Defendant/Appellant, in writing, within 30 days of date on letter from Plaintiff/Appellee's attorney. As of the date of this Brief, no contract or verification has been presented to Defendant/Appellant by Plaintiff/Appellee, as evidence, proof, or otherwise. Defendant/Appellant has, in fact, received numerous mailings pertaining to Motions with the Court from Plaintiff/Appellee. Therefore, Plaintiff/Appellee has correct address of Defendant/Appellant, yet Defendant/Appellant has not received information requested from Plaintiff/Appellee, Pursuant to FDCPA. Wherefore, Plaintiff/Appellee is in violation of FDCPA and case brought before the District Court is unlawful and, therefore, harassment. See Eric M. PICHT and Shayleen M. Picht, Plaintiffs, v. Jon R. HAWKS, George E. Warner and Jon R. Hawks, Ltd., Defendants., 77 F.Supp.2d 1041 (1999), "The FDCPA is a remedial, strict liability statute which was intended to be applied in a liberal manner.... Proof of deception or actual damages is not necessary to make a recovery under the FDCPA."

**2. THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN ITS DECISION AFTER
PLAINTIFF/APPELLEE HAD NEGLECTED TO CEASE
COLLECTION ACTIVITY AFTER DEFENDANT/APPELLANT HAD
REQUESTED NAME AND ADDRESS OF ORIGINAL CREDITOR
PURSUANT TO FDCPA.**

Plaintiff/Appellee has violated FDCPA after Defendant/Appellant requested name and address of original creditor. See Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692-1692p, § 809. Validation of debts (a)(5) and (b). See attached Exhibits "A" through "D". Defendant/Appellant has also verbally requested information. Information was requested, in writing, within 30 days of date on letter from Plaintiff/Appellee's attorney by Defendant/Appellant. See attached Exhibit "E". As stated in Plaintiff/Appellee's letter, dated May 27, 2010, "If, however you request proof of the debt or the name and address of the original creditor within the thirty-day period that begins with your receipt of this letter, the law requires our firm to suspend our efforts to collect the debt (through a lawsuit, arbitration, or otherwise) until we mail the requested information to you." As of the date of this Brief, name and address of original creditor, as well as requested "proof" have not been presented to Defendant/Appellant by Plaintiff/Appellee, as evidence or otherwise, although

Plaintiff/Appellee filed a lawsuit. Therefore, Plaintiff/Appellee is in violation of FDCPA.

3. **THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT, PURSUANT TO UTAH RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, RULE 56(c), PLAINTIFF/APPELLEE HAD SUCCEEDED IN “SHOW[ING] THAT THERE WAS NO GENUINE ISSUE AS TO ANY MATERIAL FACT” AFTER DEFENDANT/APPELLANT RAISED QUESTIONS REGARDING PLAINTIFF/APPELLEE’S ALLEGATIONS OF “BREACH OF CONTRACT”, WITHOUT PLAINTIFF/APPELLEE PRESENTING ALLEGED CONTRACT TO SUPPORT SAID CLAIM.**

Defendant/Appellant had, in fact, raised a genuine issue as to material fact in Defendant/Appellant’s MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT (page 37 in Trial Court records), among others, submitted in the District Court. “Defendant has no involvement with or any affiliation to MCM therefore has no familiarity in regards by which MCM creates and/or maintains its business records. Furthermore, Defendant has no access to information regarding alleged debt and cannot determine any validity of alleged debt without proper documented evidence of alleged debt as requested.”, and “Defendant has no access and has not been provided with evidence of alleged

debt therefore cannot determine any alleged balance information or validity of alleged debt". See Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 56(c).

See John YORGER, Plaintiff-Appellant, v. PITTSBURGH CORNING CORPORATION, Defendant-Appellee. 733 F.2d 1215, "...we cannot accept as an absolute requirement that a party opposing a motion for summary judgment must file an affidavit in order to preserve issues adequately mentioned in the response and elsewhere..... the party moving for summary judgment has the burden to show that he is entitled to judgment under established principles; and if he does not discharge that burden then he is not entitled to judgment. No defense to an insufficient showing is required."

See Johnny STILES, Plaintiff, v. HOME CABLE CONCEPTS, INC., et al., Defendants. AMERICAN GENERAL FINANCIAL CENTER, Plaintiff, v. Johnny STILES, Defendant. 994 F.Supp. 1410 (1998), where a contract was presented, as evidence, to remove "genuine issue of material fact". As of the date of this Brief, no contract or verification has been presented by Plaintiff/Appellee, as evidence or otherwise.

4. THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT

PLAINTIFF/APPELLEE HAD PRODUCED SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE ATTACHED TO AFFIDAVIT PURSUANT TO UTAH RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, RULE 56(e) TO ESTABLISH A PRIMA FACIE CASE.

See Rule 56. Summary judgment. (e) “..... Sworn or certified copies of all papers or parts thereof referred to in an affidavit shall be attached thereto or served therewith.” In this case, Plaintiff/Appellee’s only exhibit, exhibit “A” attached to Affidavit were some general provisions of a non-specific cardmember agreement. Nothing in Plaintiff/Appellee’s exhibit “A” mentioned Defendant/Appellant. Plaintiff/Appellee’s Affiant, Mycah Struck, stated in Affidavit, “I have access to and have reviewed the records pertaining to the account.....”. As such, no “records pertaining to the account” were attached thereto or served therewith.

See CELOTEX CORP. v. CATRETT, ADMINISTRATRIX OF THE STATE OF CATRETT, 477 U.S. 317 (1986) “The burden of establishing the nonexistence of a “genuine issue” is on the party moving for summary judgment....This burden has two distinct components: an initial burden of production, which shifts to the nonmoving party if satisfied by the moving party; and an ultimate burden of persuasion, which always remains on the moving party. ...The court need not decide whether the moving party has satisfied its ultimate burden of persuasion unless and until the court finds that the moving party has discharged its initial burden of

production...The burden of production imposed by Rule 56 requires the moving party to make a prima facie showing that it is entitled to summary judgment”.

CONCLUSION/RELIEF SOUGHT

Defendant/Appellant prays that the Court will forgive Defendant/Appellant's lack of form, nature, and understanding as Defendant/Appellant is acting Pro Se out of necessity. Plaintiff/Appellee has violated and continues to violate

Defendant/Appellant's Rights Pursuant to Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692-1692p. § 809. Validation of debts (b).