2011

Midland Funding LLC v. Kenneth Pipkin : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

POINT I: The Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure clearly set forth the requirements for appellate briefs. Briefs that fail to conform to said requirements place an undue burden on the appellate courts as they would have to conduct research and formulate arguments for the offending party in order to address the merits of the case. As such, the court may disregard, strike or affirm based upon an inadequate brief. Presently, Appellant has failed to cite proper authority and has failed to provide any meaningful analysis. Appellant has only presented conclusory arguments leaving the burden on the Appellate Court to research the law and flesh out the arguments. As this is contrary to the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, the Appellant's brief should be stricken or disregarded.

POINT II: In order to properly preserve an issue it must be brought before the trial court. The Appellant has failed to preserve the first two issues in his appeal as the alleged FDCPA claims were never at issue before the trial court. The action is based upon the Appellee's breach of contract claim. An FDCPA claim is a separate cause of action from a breach of contract claim. It was not raised as a cross-claim or a counter claim. There were no findings of fact or conclusions of law to appeal as the alleged FDCPA claim was not before the trial court and no rulings were made. As the alleged FDCPA claim was not properly before the trial court it was not preserved for appeal and Appellant's first two arguments should be stricken or disregarded.

POINT III: In order to challenge the trial courts entry of summary judgment the Appellant must first marshal all the evidence supporting the trial court's decision. The Appellant has failed to marshal the evidence as he has fails to present the evidence submitted in favor of summary judgment. Based on this failure, this Court should assume the record supports the entry

of summary judgment and affirm the trial court's decision.

POINT IV: Assuming, arguendo, that this court overlooks all of Appellant's briefing flaws, Appellant's claims also fail on their merits. The ruling at issue on appeal is the trial court's grant of Appellee's Motion for Summary Judgment. Appellee supported the motion by affidavit. The Appellant did not set forth any contrary facts or evidence with any admissible evidence. The Appellant did not deny opening the credit account or that he owes a balance. As the Appellant failed to provide any contrary evidence, summary judgment was proper and the trial court decision should be affirmed.

ARGUMENT

I. THE COURT OF APPEALS SHOULD AFFIRM THE TRIAL COURT'S RULING AS APPELLANT'S BRIEF IS INADEQUATE

"It is well established that a reviewing court will not address arguments that are not adequately briefed." *State v. Thomas*, 961 P.2d 299, 304 (Utah 1998) (internal citations omitted). The Rules of Appellate Procedure set forth the requirements "that appellants and appellees *must* meet when submitting briefs." *MacKay v. Hardy*, 973 P.2d 941, 947 (Utah 1998) (emphasis in original).

Pursuant to Rule 24 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, a brief "shall contain," among other various requirements, "[a] statement of the issues presented for review, including for each issue: the standard of appellate review with supporting authority" (Rule 24(a)(5)); "citation to the record showing that the issue was preserved in the trial court" (Rule 24(a)(5)(A)); and an argument which contains "the grounds for reviewing any issue not preserved in the trial court, with citations to the authorities, statutes, and parts of the record relied upon" (Rule 24(a)(9)). "All briefs under this rule must be concise, presented with accuracy, logically arranged

with proper headings and free from burdensome, irrelevant, immaterial or scandalous matters.”

Rule 24(k) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

Further, Rule 24 “requires not just bald citation to authority but development of that authority and reasoned analysis based on that authority.” *Thomas*, 961 P.2d at 305. An appellant must “fully identify, analyze, and cite its legal arguments” rather than provide a “conclusory statement unsupported by analysis or authority.” *State v. Green*, 2005 UT 9, ¶11.

Inadequate briefs place an “undue burden upon the judiciary’s time and energy,” *Green*, 2005 UT 9, ¶9, as the “burden of research and argument [is shifted] to the reviewing court.” *Thomas*, 961 P.2d at 305. The appellate court “is not a depository in which the appealing party may dump the burden of argument and research,” *id.*, and briefs which do not comply with the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure “may be disregarded or stricken, on motion or sua sponte by the court, and the court may assess attorney fees against the offending lawyer.” Rule 24(k) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure; see also *Nipper v. Douglas*, 2004 UT App 118, ¶¶16, 19-20 (stating that the court need not address the merits of a case in an inadequately briefed case and an award of attorney’s fees).

In this case, Appellee’s brief is inadequate as the Appellant fails to support his factual assertions with cites to the record, fails to cite proper authority supporting his conclusions and arguments and he fails to provide any meaningful analysis.

Appellant’s first argument is that the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (hereinafter FDCPA) has been violated. Applt. Br. at 12. While the Appellant cites to the FDCPA and a few cases, he does not develop the cases or provide any meaningful analysis on how it applies to the Appellee’s breach of contract claim. The Appellant makes unsupported statements like “no contract or verification has been presented” without any cite to any factual finding supporting his

conclusion. Aplt. Br. at 13. In essence, he is asking this Court to become a finder of fact as the FDCPA was never before the trial court and no factual findings were ever made. The trial court only decided the issue before it, namely Appellee's breach of contract claim. As Appellant's has not provided any legal authority or meaningful analysis which support his argument or suggests that it should be before this Court when it was not before the trial court, his first argument should be stricken, disregarded and this Court should summarily dismiss Appellant's appeal on this issue.

Likewise, the Appellant's second claim also is unsupported by any factual finding or any meaningful legal analysis. The Appellant has again made the unsupported statement that the Appellee "is in violation of the FDCPA." Aplt. Br. at 15. Again there are no factual findings on this issue as it was not before the trial court. The Appellant also fails to provide any meaningful legal citations or analysis leaving the burden of research and analysis on the appellate court. See Thomas, 961 P.2d at 305. As the alleged claims under the FDCPA were not properly before the trial court, no findings were made and no issues on appeal were preserved. As a result, the Appellant has failed to provide any legal basis or analysis and his second argument should be stricken, disregarded and this Court should summarily dismiss Appellant's appeal on this issue.

Although the Appellant's third claim concerns the breach of contract claim addressed by the trial court, Appellant's brief is inadequate as it does not provide relevant authoritative case law or meaningful analysis. Appellant does cite to his Opposition to Summary Judgment wherein he states that he "has no familiarity" to Appellee's business records and that he "cannot determine any validity of alleged debt" but the Appellant fails to provide any citations or legal analysis regarding what a party opposing summary judgment must present in Utah to create a genuine issue of fact. Aplt. Br. at 15. For example, the Appellant did not cite to *Heglar Ranch*,

Inc. v. Stillman, 619 P.2d 1390, 1391 (Utah 1980), which holds that summary judgment is not precluded "simply whenever some fact remains in dispute, but only when a material fact is genuinely controverted" or to *Massey v. Utah Power & Light*, 609 P.2d 937, 938 (Utah 1980) which states "bare contentions, unsupported by any specification of facts in support thereof, raise no material questions of fact as will preclude the entry of summary judgment" or any other applicable case to define the standard under which the trial court reviewed the motion for summary judgment. The Appellant also did not provide any meaningful analysis applying the facts to the law governing summary judgment in Utah. As such, the Appellant's third argument should be stricken, disregarded and this Court should summarily dismiss Appellant's appeal on this issue.

Finally, the Appellant has also failed to support his fourth argument with any meaningful legal analysis or review. The Appellant again fails to make any meaningful analysis regarding the proof submitted and supporting summary judgment. By failing to "fully identify, analyze, and cite its legal arguments" the Appellant provided a "conclusory statement unsupported by analysis or authority." *State v. Green*, 2005 UT 9, ¶11. As this leaves the burden on the Appellate Court of research and argument, it also should be disregarded or stricken.

II. THE COURT OF APPEALS SHOULD NOT ADDRESS APPELLANT'S FIRST TWO ARGUMENTS REGARDING THE ALLEGED FDCPA CLAIMS AS THEY WERE NOT BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT

Pursuant to Rule 24(a)(5)(A) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, a brief must contain a "citation to the record showing that the issue was preserved in the trial court." An issue is only properly preserved if: "(1) the issue is raised in a timely fashion; (2) the issue is specifically raised; and (3) the issue is supported by evidence or relevant legal authority." *Hatch v. Davis*, 2004 UT App 378, ¶56. "Absent plain error or exceptional circumstances . . . an

appellate court will not consider an issue—even a constitutional issue—which is raised for the first time on appeal.” *Id.*

Appellant’s first two issues are not preserved for appeal. The matter before the trial court consisted of the Appellee’s breach of contract claim. (R. 1). It did not involve any counterclaims, third party claims or even any affirmative defenses. (R. 5). Appellant’s claim on appeal—a FDCPA violation—is essentially a separate and distinct cause of action from the breach of contract matter before the trial court. A violation of the FDCPA does not affect the validity of a debt or bar state court action on a breach of contract claim. See *Maynard v. Cannon*, 650 F.Supp.2d 1138, 1143 (D. Utah 2008)(citing *Shimek v. Weissman, Nowack, Curry & Wilco, P.C.*, 374 F.3d 1011, 1013 (11th Cir.2004)) (holding that the “FDCPA ‘does not extinguish a creditor’s right to secure a debt under state law, but instead merely prohibits deceptive collection techniques.’”); *Vitullo v. Mancini*, 684 F.Supp.2d 760, 765 (E.D. Virginia 2010) (holding “The statute’s remedial scheme does not envision, and indeed does not permit, courts to cancel or extinguish debts as a remedy for FDCPA violations.”); see also 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a) (stating “any debt collector who fails to comply with any provision of this subchapter with respect to any person is liable to such person”). Additionally, an FDCPA claim is not an affirmative defense.² The trial court only ruled on the issue before it--Appellee’s breach of contract claim. (R. 57). As the alleged FDCPA claim was before the trial court it was not preserved for appeal and should not be addressed for the first time on appeal. Therefore, Appellant’s first two arguments should not be considered.

² Even if the FDCPA did constitute an affirmative defense to an action, it would have been waived as Appellant did not raise it in his Answer. See U.R.C.P. 8(c) (“In pleading to a preceding pleading, a party shall set forth affirmatively . . . any other matter constituting an avoidance or affirmative defense”); U.R.C.P. 12(h)(A party waives all defenses and objections

III. AS APPELLANT FAILS TO MARSHAL ANY OF THE EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT THE COURT OF APPEALS SHOULD ASSUME THE RECORD SUPPORTS THE TRIAL COURT'S ENTRY OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND AFFIRM

"To successfully challenge a trial court's findings of fact on appeal, an appellant must marshal the evidence in support of the findings and then demonstrate that despite this evidence, the trial court's findings are so lacking in support as to be 'against the clear weight of the evidence, thus making them 'clearly erroneous.'" *Valcarce v. Fitzgerald*, 961 P.2d 305, 312 (Utah 1998) (internal citations omitted). An appellant may not "merely state[] those facts most favorable to his position and ignore[] the contrary evidence." *Whitear v. Labor Comm'n*, 973 P.2d 982, 985 (Utah Ct. App. 1998). This burden is heavy because appellate courts "do not sit to retry cases submitted on disputed facts." *Hoth v. White*, 799 P.2d 213, 216 (Utah Ct. App. 1990).

"In order to properly discharge the duty of marshaling the evidence, the challenger must present, in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence introduced at trial which *supports* the very findings the appellant resists. After constructing this magnificent array of supporting evidence, the challenger must ferret out a fatal flaw in the evidence. The gravity of this flaw must be sufficient to convince the appellate court that the court's finding resting upon the evidence is clearly erroneous." *West Valley City v. Majestic Inv. Co.*, 818 P.2d 1311, 1315 (Utah Ct. App. 1991).

"If the appellant fails to marshal the evidence, the appellate court assumes that the record supports the findings of the trial court." *Saunders v. Sharp*, 806 P.2d 198, 199 (Utah 1991).

The Appellant has failed to marshal the evidence in support of the entry of Summary Judgment. The Appellant has failed to present the evidence provided by the Affidavit of Mycah

not presented either by motion or by answer or reply").

Struck or the Cardholder agreement that was filed in support of Appellee's Motion for Summary Judgment. (R. 18, 24). The only statements to which the Appellant cites are his arguments that were presented in Opposition to Summary Judgment. Aplt. Br. at 15-18. By failing to marshal any of the evidence that supports summary judgment the appellate court should assume the record supports the trial courts entry of judgment and affirm.

IV. SUMMARY JUDGMENT SHOULD BE AFFIRMED BECAUSE APPELLEE PROVIDED UNCONTROVERTED EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Pursuant to Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, summary judgment "shall be rendered if the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. A summary judgment, interlocutory in character, may be rendered on the issue of liability alone although there is a genuine issue as to the amount of damages." Additionally, "[w]hen a motion for summary judgment is made and supported as provided in this rule, an adverse party may not rest upon the mere allegations or denials of the pleadings, but the response, by affidavits or as otherwise provided for in this rule, must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial." Utah R. Civ. P. 56(e).

Additionally, "[e]ach fact set forth in the moving party's memorandum is deemed admitted for the purpose of summary judgment unless controverted by the responding party." Utah R. Civ. P. 7(c)(3)(A). In order to controvert a parties facts the opposing memorandum "shall contain a verbatim restatement of each of the moving party's facts that is controverted" along with "an explanation of the grounds for any dispute, supported by citation to relevant materials, such as affidavits or discovery materials." Utah R. Civ. P. 7(c)(3)(B).

Initially, the "movant must establish each element of his claim in order to show that he is entitled to judgment as a matter of law." *Orvis v. Johnson*, 2008 UT 2, ¶10. Once established, "[t]he burden on summary judgment then shifts to the nonmoving party to identify contested material facts, or legal flaws." *Id.* If the adverse party fails to set forth "specific evidentiary facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial" then the moving party is entitled to summary judgment. *Treloggan v. Treloggan*, 699 P.2d 747, 748 (Utah 1985) (internal citations omitted). "However, bare contentions, unsupported by any specification of facts in support thereof, raise no material questions of fact as will preclude the entry of summary judgment." *Massey v. Utah Power & Light*, 609 P.2d 937, 938 (Utah 1980). Additionally, summary judgment is not precluded "simply whenever some fact remains in dispute, but only when a material fact is genuinely controverted." *Heglar Ranch, Inc. v. Stillman*, 619 P.2d 1390, 1391 (Utah 1980).

Even assuming, arguendo, that the Appellant had adequately briefed, preserved and marshaled the evidence properly, the trial courts entry of Summary Judgment should be affirmed as the Appellant did not provide any contrary evidence. The Appellee supported their motion by affidavit which sets forth that the Appellant obtained a credit card from HSBC; that the account was assigned to Appellee; and that the balance of \$6,148.03 is due and owing on the credit account. (R. 14, 24). The Appellant did "not dispute validity of age, competency or employment of Affiant" or any other fact as set forth. (R. 37).